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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31 March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SPR EMF Innovations Private
Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the
Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether diiecis; .
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and %t_z;m"audn"f.._\"__-
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SPR EMF Innovations Private
Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls; '

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down
under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
statements;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books

c) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

of the Act;
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Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of SPR EMF Innovations Private
Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the

9)

il.

V.

Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2025 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure B, wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position
as at 31 March 2025.;

the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025,

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025;

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as

disclosed in note 50 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 51 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding
Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any
material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2025.
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SPR EMF Innovations Private
Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

vi.  As stated in note 55 to the financial statements and based on our examination which included
test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on or after 1 April 2024,
has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we
did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Furthermore, the
audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention from the date the audit trail was enabled for the accounting software.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Arun Tandon
Partner
Membership No.: 517273
UDIN: 25517273BMIDAD5459

Place: New Delhi
Date: 07 May 2025
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress
and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, and relevant details of right-
of-use assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of
physical verification programme adopted by the Company, is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee), disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements, are held in the name of the
Company. For title deeds of immovable properties in the nature of land situated at Sulur,
Coimbatore with gross carrying amount of Rs 107.59 millions have been mortgaged as
security for loans or borrowings taken by the Company, confirmations with respect to title
of the Company have been directly obtained by us from the respective lenders.

(d) The Company has adopted cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment including right-
of-use assets and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2020 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Order’) is not
applicable to the Company.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (@) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year, except for goods-in-transit. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of
such verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more
in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records. In
respect of goods-in-transit, these have been confirmed from corresponding receipt and/or
dispatch inventory records.

(b) As disclosed in note 54 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a working
capital limit in excess of Rs. 5 crores by banks based on the security of current assets. The
quarterly statements for the quarters ended 30 September 2024 and 31 December 2024, in
respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company with such banks and such
statements are in agreement with the books of account of the Company for the respective
periods, which were subject to review. Further, the Company is yet to submit the quarterly
statements for the quarter ended 31 March 2025 with the relevant bank as on date.

(iii) The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Compag‘&'@fjr:‘
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

(iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services / business
activities. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii}(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that there are no
statutory dues referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no transactions
were surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books
of accounts.

(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any money by way of term loans during the year and did not have any term
loans outstanding at the beginning of the current year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{(d} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any funds on short term basis during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company does not
have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix){e)
and clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further publi
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xM{anM
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period
covered by our audit.

{(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us
by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us
by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of the Act, where applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24,
Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as
prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

(xiv)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to have an
internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act. However, the Company has
an internal audit system which, in our opinion, is commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi}(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of
the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial years amounting to Rs. 10.68 millions and Rs. 30.50 millions respectively.

{xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information in the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors
and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet the criteria
as specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said
clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Arun Tandon
Partner

Membership No.: 517273
UDIN: 25517273BMIDADS5459

Place: New Delhi
Date: 07 May 2025
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Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited (formerly
EMF Innovations Private Limited) (‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘'ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that couid have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of SPR EMF
Innovations Private Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) on the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the Inherent limitations of internal financlal controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Arun Tandon
Partner :
Membership No.: 517273
UDIN: 25517273BMIDAD5459

Place: New Delhi
Date: 07 May 2025
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Particulars
ASSETS
Non-current asscts

a) Property, plant and cquipment
b) Capital work-in-progress
©) Intangible assets
d) Right of use asscts
©) Financial assets
() Other Nnancial assets
f) Deferred tax assas (net)
@) Other non-current asscts

Current asscts

a)  Inventorics
b) PFinancial assets
(i) Tavestments
() Trade receivables
(ii)) Cash and cash cquivalents

(iv) Other bank batances other than i) above

() Other financial assets

¢ Other current assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
a) Fquity share capital
b) Other equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
) linancial liabilitics
() Rorcowings
(i) Leasc liabilitics
(i) Other financial labilities
h)  Other non-current liabilities

Curtent liabilities
@) Financial liabilitics
(@ Leasc liabilitics
(i) Trade payables

- total outstanding dues of micre enterprises and small entemases

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises
(i) Other financial liabilities
b)  Other cuerent liabilitics

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Ste accompanying notes to the financial staternents

Tn terms of oue report attached

g Regnstragon
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Arun Tandon
Pariner
Membership no. 517273

Place: New Delhi
Datc : 07 May 2025

SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(tormedy EME Tanovatons Private Limued)

Balance Sheet as ar 31 March 2025

Note As at As at
No. 31 Mureh 2025 31 Macch 2024
Re million Rs. million
3 9751 40.57
'l 204 7.24
5 LER R #6.50
[ 24,40 2753
i g 343 1:50
7 21.03 21.03
o 48.70 56.61
- 684.55 241.04
0 ' 127.26 5421
" 11080 316.23
12 97,99 19.86
13 2,68 17.35
13 5448 4D4.32
] 021 075
mn 66.57 3KH9
460.08 881.61
TOTAL ASSETS 1,144.63 1,122.65
14 17517 175.17
15 746.27 7R3.15
921.44 958.32
16 4612 41.00
34 25.30 2717
19 0.40 227
17 0.02 -
71.84 70.44
34 1.47 1.50
18
17.47 10.88
50.30 20.24
20 42.84 11.42
17 38.87 40.85
151.35 93.89
1,144.63 1,122.65
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SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

Particulars Note For the Year ended For the Year ended
Nao. 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
1 Revenue from operations 21 204.20 128.87
IT  Otherincome 22 33.36 13.70
I ‘Total income (I + II) 237.56 142,57
IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 23 180.25 130.70
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 24 (5.04) {12.44)
LEmployee bencfits expense 25 3228 36.58
Tinance costs 26 8.05 11.88
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 26.26 21.73
Orther expenses 28 32.74 14.90
Total expenscs 274.54 203.35
V  Losa before tax (III - IV) (36.98) (60.78)
VI Tax expense
1) Ciiereil (ux 3 M
i) Defereed tax 7 - (3.41)
- (3.4
VII Loss for the year (V - VI) (36.98) (57.37)
VIII Other comprehensive income
A (i) Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
1) Renieasuremeénts of the post cniploymenit defined benefit plans 0.04 0.33
(ii) Tncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassilied to prolit or loss = =
B (1) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
a) [air value change of cash flow hedge 0.06 (0.55)
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss = =
Total other comprehensive income 0.10 (0.22)
Total comprehensive income for the year (VII + VIIT) (36.88) (57.59)
Eaminge per ehare (of Rs. 10/- each) 30
Basic (Rs) (2.11) (4.60)
Diluted ( Rs) 11) (4.60)
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1to 55
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SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2025

Year ended Year ended
R 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

A. Cash flow from opetating activities Re. million Rs. million
Loss before tax (36.98) (60.78)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation/amortisation 26.26 21.73
Loss/ (profif) on sale/ retirement of property, plant and equipment (0.10)
Bad debts/advances written off - 2.12
Provision for doubful debts/advances (net) 133 112
Net gain on sale/ fair valuation of current itivestment (11.40) (241)
Unrealised exchange rate vatlation (net) (1.08) -
Interest income (20.21) (11.16)
Finance costs 8.05 11.88
Operating loss before working capital changes (34.13) (37.50)
Adjustments for :
(Increase)/ decrease in inventorics (43.05) (11.19)
(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables (79.17) 857
(Inctease)/ dectease in other financial assets (current and non- 0.79) 043
current)
(Increase)/ dectease in other assets (current and non-current) (19.11) (54.86)
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payable 28.68 28.41
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities (cucrent and non-current) 3317 6.44
Increase/ (decrease) in other liabilities and provisions (current and non-current) (5.81) (10.62)
Cash used in operations (120.21) (87.46)
Income tax paid (0.95) (0.80)
Net cash used in operating operations A) (121.16) (88.26)

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Interest received 19.67 11.03
Proceeds from redemption of current investments 605.94 351.24
Purchases of current investments (389.20) (665.06)
Investment in deposit with banks (53.60) (385.82)
Redemption of deposit with banks 403.44 156.50
Sale of property, plant and equipment 0.72 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capital work-in-progress) (464.68) (16.49)
Putchase of intangible assets (11.75) (25.22)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities ®) 110.54 (573.82)

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceed from allotment of shares - 700.00
Repayment of external commerical borrowings (ECB) - (26.13)
Interest paid (0.03) 0.33)
Payment of principal portion of lease liability (1.50) (1.21)
Payment of intetest on lease liability (2.52) (2.64)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities ©) (4.05) 669.69
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (14.67) 7.61
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 17.35 9.74
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,68 17.35




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formetly EMF Innovations Private Limited)
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2025

At at As at
31 March 2025 3 March 2024

Ra. million Ra, million
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks
- Current accounts 2.68 17.35
Total cash and cash equivalents 2.68 12.35
Note:

1. The cash flow statement has been peepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Tnd AS) 7.
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u) Fully paid up cquity shares
(face vatue of Re. 10/- each)

SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EXIF Inaovations Urivate Limited)

Statement of change in equity as at 31 March 2028

Amount
No of shares Rts, million
Balance s at 34 March 2023 1,20,05,271 120,05
Add: lssued during the yeae ELAE R 55.12
Balance as at 31 March 2024 1,75,17,082 175.17
Balance as at 31 March 2025 1,75,17,082 175.17
b) Other equity Rs. million
Items of ather
Reacrves and surplus comprehensive
income Bquity component of
Particulars compound financial Total
1 - i
Sccutlties Retained IJE.:;::":::““ fnatrument
premiom * carninge hedge reacrve

Balance as at 31 March 2023 238,59 (71.45) - 28,72 195,86
Loss for the year - (57.37) - - (57.37)

Share issuedd uring the year 644.88 - . g 44.88
Ohiher comprebensive income for the year, net of x - 0.33 (01.55) (0.2

Balance as at 31 March 2024 B83.47 (128.49) (0,55) 28.72 783,15
Loss for the year - (36.98) - - (36.98)

Othes. compechennive: i for the year, net of ax - 0.4 0.06 - - 0.10

Balance as at 31 March 2025 883.47 (165.43) (0.49) 28.72 746.27

“ The secunities pramiam s not “free reserve” as per the Companies Act 2013, bence not available for distabution of dividend.

Sec accompanying notes 1o the financial slatements

Tn teems of oue teport attached

(2L}

Anun Tandon
Pacinee
Membership no. 517273

Place: New Delhi
Date : 07 May 2025

110 55
For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctora
BTEY N S|
— !
i

Krishnakumar Srinivasan Alok Raafan
Chairman Dicector
DIN: 00692717 1 08254398
W Tlace: New Delhi Plages Luilaow

& M M
Sanjans Kalra cepak Kumar Hang Xuoe Vi Krighiua gl
Compuny Seceetary  Chief Pinandal Officer Dhireetar Manmging Dicector

Plice: New Delhi Thate: Colinbasore DN osnaan

Mace: Singapore

DIN: 10338985
Pluce: Combaiore



SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

1. Cotpotate information

SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) (“the Company™)
having CIN U29309TZ2016PTC027538 is incorporated on 13th May, 2016 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at 2/209 to 2/212
Shasti Building, Rajiv Gandhi Nagar, Mylampatti Village, Neelambur, Coimbatote - 641062. The name
of the company changed to SPR EMF Innovations Ptivate Limited w.e.f. Aptil 30, 2024 as per MCA
approval dated April 30, 2024

The Company’s business activity falls under the business of Reseatch, Development, Manufacturing and
sale of Motors and Motor Controllets.

The financial statements of the Company are approved for issuance by the Company's Boatd of Ditectots
on 07 May 2025.

2. Material accounting policy information
2.1.1 Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

The financial statements ("financial statements") have been prepated in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2017 issued by the Ministty of Corporate Affairs (MCA’).

The financial statements have been prepared under histotical cost convention on accrual and going
concern basis, except for the following assets and liabilities: -

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measuted at fair value (tefer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments)

i) Investments in unquoted equity shares measured at fair value

li) Defined benefit liabilities are measured at present value of defined benefit obligation.

iv) Certain financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except whete a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements are presented in INR “(Indian Rupees)” and all values are rounded to the nearest
million, except when otherwise indicated.

2.1.2 Fait value measutement

Fait value is the ptice that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fait value of an asset
or a liability, the Company takes into account the chatacteristics of the asset or liability if market
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SPR EMF Innovations Ptivate Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosute putposes is determined on such a basis
and measutements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purpose, fair value measurements ate categotised into level 1, 2, or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are obsetvable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in the entitety, which are desctibed as follows:

- Level 1: This level includes financial assets that ate measured by refetence to quoted ptices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: This level includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted
ptices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either ditectly (i.e., as prices)
ot indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

- Level 3: This level includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in patt, using a
valuation model based on assumptions that ate neither supported by ptices from obsetvable current
market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available matket data.

2.1.3 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current
classification

The Company classifies an asset as current asset when:

. it expects to realise the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its notmal operating cycle;
. it holds the asset for the putpose of trading;

. it expects to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; ot

. the asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used
to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting petiod.

All other assets ate classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as cutrent when:

. it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
. it holds the liability for the purpose of trading;

: the liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the teporting period; or

: it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting petiod. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements fot the year ended 31 March 2025

countetparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-cutrent assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash ot cash equivalents. The Company’s normal operating cycle is twelve months.

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements is in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
and requires the management to make estimates and assumptions consideted in the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the finandal
statements and the reported income and expenses duting the yeat. The management believes that the
estimates used in preparation of the financial statements ate prudent and reasonable. Future results could
differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are
tecognised in the periods in which the results are known / matetialise infotmation, about significant areas
of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the Financial Statements is included in the following
notes.

* Deferred tax: Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the cotresponding amounts used
for taxation purposes. Significant management judgement is requited to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

* Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets: Value of property, plant and equipment and
intangibles at the end of each reporting period. Factors such as changes in the expected level of usage
could significantly impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets. Consequently,
the future depreciation charge could be revised and may have an impact on the profit of the future yeats.

* Estimation of defined benefit obligation: Employee benefit obligations are determined using
actuatial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making vatious assumptions that may differ from
actual developments. These include the estimation of the appropriate discount rate, future salary increases
and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, the
employee benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

* Estimation for expected credit losses of trade treceivables: Trade receivables do not carry any
interest and are stated at their notmal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated
itrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables ate written off when management believes that there
is uncertainty of collections. Provision is recognised based on the expected credit losses, which are the
present value of the cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets.




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formetly EMF Innovations Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the yeat ended 31 March 2025

* Incremental tate of bortowing for lease accounting: The Company cannot readily determine the
intetest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease
liabilities, The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar
tetm, and with a sitilar security, the funds necessaty to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar econommic environment. The IBR thetefore reflects what the Company ‘would have
to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted
to teflect the tetms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using obsetrvable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates

2.3.1 Revenue tecognition
Sale of products/services

The Company recognize tevenue from the sale of products or setvices is recognized upon transfer of
control to customers. Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration which the Company expects
to be entitled to in exchange fot transfetring distinct goods ot setvices to a customer as specified in the
contract, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, taxes and duties collected
on behalf of the government). A receivable is recognized upon satisfaction of performance obligations
as pet the contracts and is measured at transaction price.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or setvices transferted to the
customer. If the Company performs by transferting goods ot services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration ot before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the eatned consideration
that is conditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or setvices to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration (ot an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or setvices to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made ot the payment is due (whichever is eatliet). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

2.3.2 Other income
Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on
time basis, by reference to the ptincipal outstanding and at the interest rate as applicable.

Miscellaneous income

Other trevenues ate recognised on accrual basis, except whete thete ate uncertainties in realisation /
determination of income and in such case income is tecognised on tealisation / certainty.




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements fot the year ended 31 Match 2025

2.4.1 Property, plant and equipment

Propetty, plant and equipment held for use in production or supply of goods and services, or for
administrative purpose, are stated at historic cost, net of accumulated depreciation (net of input tax credits
availed) including taxes and other incidental expenses related to acquisition, installation and borrowing
cost on loan taken for the acquisition of qualifying assets up to the date the assets are ready for their
intended use.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:
(@ it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure can be capitalised only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the company.

An item of property, plant and equipment is detecognised on disposal, ot when no future economic
benefit ate expected to atise from the continued use of assets. Any gain and loss atising on the disposal
of or retirement is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the catrying amount of
the assets and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.4.2 Intangible assets

Intangible assets ate recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset
will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets held for use in production or supply of goods and services, or for administrative
putpose, ate stated at ate stated at historic cost, net of accumulated depreciation (net of input tax credits
availed) including taxes and other incidental expenses related to acquisition, installation and borrowing
cost on loan taken for the acquisition of qualifying assets upto the date the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
to atise from the continued use of assets. Any gain and loss arising on the disposal of or retirement is
determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the catrying amount of the assets and is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.4.3 Capital work-in-progtess

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects under
development and are carded at cost. Cost includes telated acquisition expenses, development/
construction costs, borrowing costs and other direct expenditure.

2.4.4 Intangible assets under development

All development costs incutred in respect of new model development projects are capitalised under
intangible assets under development. Once the new model is commercialised, the cost accumulated in




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formetly EMF Innovations Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

intangible assets under development ate classified as intangible assets corresponding to the new model
development project.

2.4.5 Leases
Lessee Accounting

1) Lease liability is initially recognised at the commencement of lease and measured at an amount equal
to the present value of minimum lease payments during the lease term that are not yet paid.

ii) Right of use asset is tecognised at the commencement of lease and measured at cost, consisting of
initial measurement of lease liability plus any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, initial estimate of the restoration costs and any
initial ditect costs incutred by the lessee. Right-of-use assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets and impairment loss.
Subsequent measurement of tight-of-use assets is done in accordance with cost model.

iii) The lease liability is measuted in subsequent petiods using the effective interest rate method.

iv) Recognition and measuteent exemption is availed for low-value assets and short term leases. Assets
of low value include IT equipment ot office furniture. No monetary threshold has been defined for
low-value assets. Short-term leases ate defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

2.5 Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, ot other amount substituted for cost, less its
estimated residual value.

The Company is following written down value method in case of Computers, Furniture & fixtures and
office equiptnent and straight line method in respect of other assets.

Depteciation on tangible propetty, plant and equipment has been provided as per the useful life
ptesctibed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following categories of
assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed based on technical advice, taking into account
the nature, the estimated usage, operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated
technological changes and maintenance practices etc. Following are the estimated useful lives of vatious
category of assets used:

Plant and equipment
- General - cight years
- Electric equipments - five years
- Plant and equipment — welding - fifteen years
- Leasehold improvement - five yeats
- Furniture and fixtures - ten years ——
. CARNDIgS,




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

- Office equipments - five yeats

- Computer - three years
- Motor vehicles - eight yeats
- Building - thirty yeats
- Dies - three yeats

All intangible assets ate amortised on straight-line method over their estimated useful life as under.

Intellectual property - ten yeats
Computer software - three years
Right of use Assets under leases - over the lease petiod

Depreciation on assets acquited/sold/discarded duting the year is charged on pro-rata basis.

The estimated useful lives, tesidual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
teporting period, and the effect of any changes in estimate is accounted fot on a prospective basis.

2.6 Financial insttuments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition ot issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss are added to the fait value on initial recognition.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets ate accounted for at trade date basis. Regular way
purchases ot sales are purchase or sales of financial assets that requite delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the matket place.

Classification of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost

1) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in ordet to collect contractual
cash flows; and

i) The conttactual terms of the instrument give tise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the ptincipal amount outstanding,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Match 2025

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through othet comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that ate designated as at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

if) The contractual terms of the instrument give tise on specified dates to cash flows that ate solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial asset which are not classified in any of the above categoties are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component ot for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction ptice detetmined under Ind AS 115. The
average credit petiod is 175 days.

Investments
Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost ot at fair value through profit ot loss
(FVTPL). For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the
cattying amounts approximate fair value due to the shott maturity of these insttuments.

Fair value is determined in the manner desctibed in note nio 38.
2.7. Derivative financial insttuments

The Company enters into a vatiety of detivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest
rate and foreign exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange forwatd contracts and cross currency
interest rate swaps.

Detivatives are initially recognised at fait value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and
ate subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each repotting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately unless the detivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the statement of profit
and loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and the nature of the hedged item.

(i) Financial asects or financial liabilities, at fair value through profit or loss.

This categoty has detivative financial assets or liabilities which are not designated as hedges. Although
the Company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic petspective, they may
not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments. Any derivative that is either
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not designated a hedge, or is so designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109, is categorized as a financial
asset ot financial liability, at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and attributable transaction costs
ate recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial
tecognition, these detivatives ate measured at fair value through the statement of profit and loss and the
resulting exchange gains or losses are included in the statement of profit and loss. Assets/liabilities in this
categoty are ptesented as cuttent assets/current liabilities if they are either held for trading or are expected
to be tealized within 12 months after the Balance sheet date.

(i) Hedge accounting

The Company designates the detivatives as hedge of foteign exchange risk associated with the cash flows
of highly probable forecast transaction.

The Company documents at the inception of the hedging transaction the economic relationship between
hedging instrument and hedge items. The Company documents its risk management objective and
strategy fot undettaking various hedge transactions at the inception of each hedge relationship.

When forward contracts ate used to hedge forecast transactions, the Company generally designates
related forward contract telated as the hedging instruments.

The effective pottion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges, is recognised in othet comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash
flow hedge resetve. The gain ot loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss. Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity relating to (effective portion as described above) are reclassified to the statement
of profit and loss in the petiods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the
recognised hedged item. Fot the same, Company matches critical terms of hedge item and hedge
instruments.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or
exercised, ot when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when
the forecast ttansaction and cross curtency intetest rate swap transaction is ultimately tecognised in the
statement of profit and loss. When a forecast transaction and cross curtency intetest rate swap transaction
is no longer expected to occut, the gain ot loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss.

Fair value is determined in the manner described in note no 38.
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2.8 Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product
to its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:

i) Raw materials and components: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted avetage basis. Raw
materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below
cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at ot above cost.

i) Work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on the normal operating capacity.

iii) Finished goods: cost includes cost of ditect materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing
ovetheads based on the normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.9 Foteign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign cusrency are recorded on initial recognition at the exchange rate prevailing on ot
closely approximating to the date of transaction.

At the end of each reporting petiod, monetaty items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items ate tecognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period
in which they atise except exchange differences on transactions enteted into in ordet to hedge certain
foreign cutrency risks.

For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, the exchange
diffetences are recognised in statement of profit and loss except for those which ate designated as hedging
insttuments in a hedging relationship.

2.10 Employee benefits
Retitement benefit costs and teemination benefits:

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Contribution towards Provident Fund is paid as per the statutory provisions. These benefits are charged
to the statement of profit and loss of the year when they become due. For defined post-employment
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method, with actuarial valuations being catried out at the end of each annual repotting petiod. Re-
measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the teturn on plan assets
(excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a chatge ot credit recognised
in othet comprehensive income in the petiod in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not teclassified to the
statement of profit and loss. Past setvice cost is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the
petiod of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of
the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

1) Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments
and settlements);

i) Net interest expense ot income; and
iif) Remeasurement.
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits:

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries in the period
the related setvice is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for that setvice.

Liabilities recognised in tespect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related setvice.

Liabilities for compensated absence that ate not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees rendered the related service, are measured at the present value
of expected future payment to be made in respect of service provided by employees up to the end of
teporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefit are discounted using the market
yields at the end of reporting period. Remeasurement as a result of expetience adjustments and change
in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.11 Research and development

Revenue expenditure on tesearch and development, inclusive of dies for new model development, is
charged as expense in the year in which incurred. Capital expenditure is included in Property, plant,
equipment and intangible assets.

2.12 T'axes on income

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognized in net
profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly
in equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income. Current income tax for current
and ptior periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to ot recovered from the tax authorities,
using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet
date. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their catrying amounts in the financial statements

o
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Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and ate expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered ot settled. The effect of changes
in tax rates on defetred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the petiod
that includes the enactment ot the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized.

The Company offsets cutrent tax assets and current tax liabilities, whete it has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, ot to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.13 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction ot production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessatily take a substantial petiod of time to get ready for their intended use ot
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time the assets ate substantially ready for their
intended use ot sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific bortowings pending theit expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the botrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the petiod in which they
are incurred.

2.14 Eatnings per shate

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to the ownets of the Company
by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding duting the financial year. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of bonus issue, share split and
any new equity issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings pet share, profit ot loss atttibutable to the owners of the
Company and the weighted average number of shates outstanding duting the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shates.

2.15 Impairment of assets

The catrying values of Propetty, plant and equipment, tight-of-use assets and intangible assets are
reviewed at each Balance sheet date for impairment. If any indication of impaitment exists, the
tecoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised, if the cattying amount of
these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recovetable amount is the greater of the net selling
price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present
value based on an appropriate discount factor. When thete is indication that an impairment loss
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recognised for an asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased such reversal
of impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company applies the expected credit loss model fot recognising impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss.

2.16 Provisions

Provisions ate recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
sutrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured teliably.

2.17 Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when thete is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources.

When there is 2 possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood on outflow
of resoutces is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

2.18 Segment reporting

An operating segment is 2 component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may eatn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with
any of the Company’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available. The
Company is primarily engaged in the design and manufacturing of electric vehicle motots and motor
controllers. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regulatly by the Company’s Chief
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM?”) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments
and assess their petformance. CODM believes that these ate governed by same set of risk and returns
hence CODM teviews as one balance sheet component.
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2.19 Recent ptonouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the
year ended 31 March 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS — 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to
Ind AS 116 — Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. 01
April 2024. The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has
determined that it does not have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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5. Intangible ausets

Re. million
Other intangible assete
C 'l ¢all, 1
Particulars sof l — Total
As at 31 March 2024
Grose carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount - 76.40 76.40
Additions 301 22,21 2522
Disposals = =
Closing gross earrying as at 31 March 2024 3.01 98.61 101.62
A lated d iati
Opening accumlulated depteciation . 6.67 6.67
Depteciation / amortisation charged during the yeat 0.81 7.64 8.45
Disposals = - =
Closing lated depreciation as at 31 March 2024 0.81 14.31 15.12
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 2,20 84.30 86,50
As at 31 March 2028
Grous carrying amount
Opening gross cattying amount 3.01 98.61 101.62
Additions 11,75 11.75
Disposals - - -
Closin A carrying amount as at 31 March 2025 3.04 110.36 113.37
Accumulated amortisation
Opening accumlulated depteciation 0.81 14.31 15.12
Depreciation / amottisation charged during the yeat 0.95 9.86 10.81
Disposals - - -
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2025 176 A4.17 25.93
Net eurrying amount us at 31 March 2025 1,28 86.19 87.44
(i) The Company has not revalued intangible assets during the year.
6. Right of use assets
Rs, million
Right of use assets
Particulare (refer note 34)
Land Buildings Total
As at 31 March 2024
Grosy casrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 3.68 28.75 3243
Additions - . .
Closing gross carrying s at 31 March 2024 3.68 28.75 3243
A ored -
Opening accumulated depreciation 0.78 0.98 1.76
Depreciation / amortisation chasged during the year 0.78 236 314
Disposals . . -
Closing lated depreciation as at 31 March 2024 1.56 3 4.90
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 212 25.41 27.83
As at 31 March 2028
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 3.68 28.75 3243
Additions
Disposals . & .
2028 3.68 28.78 32.43
Accumulated amortisation —
Opening accumulated depreciation 1.56 334 4.90
Depreciation / amortisation charged during the year 0.77 2,36 313
Closing lated depreciation as at 31 March 2023 2.33 5.70 8.03
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2025 1.33 23.08 24.40

()) The Company has not revalued right-of-use asscts during the year.
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7. a) Deferred tax asscts (net)

Deferred tax assets
Business loss and unabsorbed depreciation

Net deferred tax assets *

(b) Changes in deferred tax assets (net)

Items leading to creation of deferred tax assets

Income tax expenses calculated at current tax rate
Adjustment recognised in cutrent year in relation to deferred
tax of prior year

Interest on MSMED patrties

Effect of tax on unabsoted depreciation (prior years)

Net deferred tax assets /( liability)

Items leading to creation of deferred tax assets

Income tax expenses calculated at current tax rate
Adjustment recognised in current year in relation to deferred
tax of ptiot year

Interest on MSMED parties

Effect of tax on unabsored depreciation (prior years)

Net deferred tax asseta / (liability)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
21.03 21.03
21.03 21.03
21.03 21.03
Rs, million
As at Recognised in As at
31 March 2024 OCI Profit / Loss 31 March 2025
19.20 - 19.20
1.80 - - 1.80
0.03 - " 0.03
21.03 - - 21.03
Ra. million
As at Recognised in As at
31 March 2023 0CI Profit / Loes 31 March 2024
15,79 - 3.41 19.20
1.80 1.80
0.03 0.03
17.62 - KRS 2103

* Due to lack of virtual cettainity of future taxable income, deferred tax asset arising duting the year, has not been recognised.

(This space bas been intentionally lft blunk)
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8, Invcatments

Current investments (Unquoted)

Carried at fair value through Statement of Profit and loss

Investment in mutual fund (Liquid fund) units of face value of Rs 1000 each
- 26,085 units (Previous year 30,274 units) UTI Liquid Fund - Direct plan - Growth
- Nil (Previous year: 25,978 units) Sundaram Liquid Fund - Direct plan - LFZG

- Nil (Previous year: 29,304 units) HSBC Liquid Fund - Direct growth

- Nil (Previous year: 18,656 units) SBI Liquid Fund - Direct growth

Aggregate book value of unquoted investments
Aggregate maket value of unquoted investments
Aggregate value of impairment in value of investments

9. Other financial asrets
(At amortised cost excluding derivative instrument)

Non-current:
Security deposits
Leasa: provision for doubtful security deposita*

*Rounded off to zero
Current:

Interest accrued on deposits
10. Other assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)
Non-current:
i) Capital advances
Less: Provision for doubtful advances
ii) Gratuity recoverable (refer note 37)
iii) Advance income tax

Less: provision for doubtful advances

Cument:

i) Advances other than capital advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful advances

if) Balance with government authorities
Less: Provision for doubtful balance

iif) Prepaid expenses

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Re. million Re. million
110.89 119.82
- 55.39
70.51
" 70.51
110.89 31623
110.12 314.11
110.89 31623
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs, million Rs. million
343 1.56
s (0.00)
343 156
0.21 0.75
0.21 0.75
Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Res. million Re. million
46.90 55.39
(0.18) (0.18)
46.72 55.21
0.21
2.14 1.19
(0.16) -
1.98 1.19
48.70 56.61
9.29 8.19
0.27 0.18
9,56 8.37
0.27) (0.18)
9,29 8.19
56.64 30.22
(0.04) -
56.60 30.22
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11, Iaventories
(valued st lower of coat or net cealisable value)
Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Ra. million Rae. miftion
Raw material and components 99.70 61.69
(ncdudes in cransit Rs. 13,11 million (previous yeas: Re. 11.81 million))
Work-in-progress 145 1045
Finished gooda 26.11 12,07
127.26 84.21
Note:
Inventoies are hypothecated as security against working oapital b ing (s ding b ing &s on 31 March 2025 - Nil).
12, Trade receivables
Asat Asat
31 March 2025 3 March 2024
R, million Ras. million
Trade receivables consideted goods - Secured - -
Tends receivables cansidered goods - Unsecured # 97.99 19.86
Receivable which have significant increase in credit risk -
Ceedit impaired 182 0.90
99.81 20.76
Less: Allownnce for expeced credit loss on receivable credit impaired (1.82) (0.90)
97.99 19.

Notes:
i) *There is no trade receivable which have significant increase in credit sk
ii) * Tradde receivilile of Re. 0,28 milliews (previcus year: Re, 10.28 million) i due fram related party (cefer note 32).

iif) *No trade o other eecelvable are dus from directan oc other officees of the Company cither severally ar jointly with any othes person or debts due by fims of private campanies respectively in which any dicector i

partner or a ditector or a member.
iv) Trade receivables are pledged as security against working capital b ing (( ding b

g as an 31 March 2025 - Nil).

R, millios

Trade receivable ageing as on 31 Murch 2028 {s as under

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Partoulars Unbiiled Dues Not Due

Less than 6
months

6 months More than

= | year

1-2yeare 23
yearm yearm

Total

05.68

() Undiaputed trade_eecevables — considersd good -

3 youra

146 055 LM 0.26

g1

(i) Undisputed trade recetvables —which have sgnificant increase in i
it rak -

fif) Undisputed teacls receivables = credit impaired - =

oo 13 (L

() Dhisputed trade receivables—considersd good . -

(¥) Pisputed teade receivables - which have significant increase in
ceodin rish

{vi} Disputed trade rreervables — credit impaived - =

Toral =

L3 004 165 .08

Trade recelvable ageing s on 31 March 2024 1 an under:

R millioa

Ountniding for following perinds from due date of pay

Particular Unbilied Dues

6 months 1-2 years 23 More than
<L year yean yean 3 yean

Total

Llnalis, trade recelvables ~ considered = =

0.1 1.22 - =

TEBG

(i) Undisputed trude cecelinbles —which have significant inerease in
credit tiik

{us) Undisputed teade coceivablos — crodlit impaired - =

.90

iiv) Brinputed mrade recervables—contidered gmnd . =

(v) Diaputed trade receivabilen —which have significant increase in
ereadit rigle

fi) Dispiuted teade receivables - veedit impaired o B

&

.76

13, Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances
As at
31 March 2028
Ru. millloa Ra.
1) Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks

- curent accounts 2,68

As at

31 March 2024

million

1735

2.68
if) Ochier bank balances
- Depasite with banks , with otiginal maturity more

than 3 months but less than 12 months” Eathl

17.38

404.32

54.48

404.32

87.16

aLe

* The Company has been sanctioned working capital loan by Kotak Mhindr Bank Limited againt collatesal of bank deposit amounting Rs. 53.5 maltion.
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14. Equity share capital
As at As st
__31 March 2025 __ 3March2024
Rs. milion Re. million

Authorised shatcs capital
35,000,000 (previous year 35,000,000) equity shares of 350.00 15000
Ra. 10 each

350.00 350.00
o lssued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital
17,517,082 (previous year 17,517,082) equity shares of 17517
Re 10 each 175.17

175.17 175.07
b Veoma /rights auached (o equity shates
The Company has only one clas of equity shares having 2 par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each bolder of equity share is entitled to dividend snd ome vote per share. Tn the event of
liuidation, the equity shareholders are eligible (o receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all pref I I, it oy to their sharcholding,

. Reconcilistion of numbers of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting year

As at As at
31 March 2028 31 March 2024
No. of shares Ra. million No. of shaves Rs. million
Opening balance 1,75,17,082 175.17 1200521 120.05
Tesued during the year* - . 35,10 811 55.12
Closing balance 1,75.17,082 17507 1,75,17,082 17507

d. Detalls of equity shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Asat As st
31 March 2028 31 March 2024
No. ofshares % ehareholding No. of shares % sharcholding
SPR Engenious Limited 1,16,34,499 66.42% 1,16,34,499 66.42%
EMFI Tntemational Pte Ltd 58,82,583 33,58% 58,82,583 33.58%
¢. Details of shares held by promoters at the end of the year
Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Name of promoter No. of shares % shareholding % Chnn:’:l'udng bl No, of shares % sherehalding % c'::'y::“""‘
SPR Engenious Limited 1,16,34,499 66.42 - 1,16,34,499 66.42 90.02
EMFI Intenational Pte Ltd 58,32,583 33.58 - 58,82,583 33.58 -

“The Board of dircctots, in itd meeting of 30 January 2024, had appeosed to raite additional capital of Rs. 700,00 million by way of right issue to the existing shareholdees @ Rs. 127/- pee
share of face value of Rs, 10 each at premium of Re, 117 each . The Shares shall rank pati passu in all respects and carey the same rights as the existing equity shaces, EMF Tnternational Pie.
Lad. vide its letter dated 30 January 2024, renouced its tipht to acquire 2,700,787 equity shares in favour of SPR Engenious Limited (SF1). Subsequent to this, SEL mibscribed the entive
right igsue of 3,511,811 shares i shares wete issued on 1 March 2024 accordingly,

£. The Corapany has not issued any bonus shates nor has there been any buy-back of shares nor any shares ace issued for consideration other than cash in the current year and preceding five
years,

(Thic space bas boen intentionally bt blonk)




SPR EMF I vati Private Limited
(formedy EMF lnnovations Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

15, Other equity
Rs. million
Ttems of other
Reserves and surplus comprehensive Equity 2
! p 0
Particulars pound Total
P p_ B A Effective portion of financial
p p Sub Total cash flow hedge instrument
L = reserve
Balance as at 31 March 2023 238.59 (.45 167.14 - 28,72 195.86
Loss for the year - (57.37) (57.37) - = (5137
Allotment of equity shares 644.88 - 6+4.88 - - 644.88
Othet comprehensive income for the year, net of fax - 0,33 0.33 (01.55) - (0.22)
Balance as ut 31 March 2024 B83.47 (128.49) 754.98 (0.,55) 28,72 783.15
Loss fot the year . (36.98) (36.98) - - (36.98)
Other comprehiensive incame for the year, net of tax - 0.4 0.04 .06 - 0.10
Balunce os at 31 March 312028 883,47 (165.43) 718.04 (0.49) 28.72 746.27
Nature and purpose of reserves:
Retained eamnings

Retsined eamings refer to the net profit/(loss) retained by the Company for its core business activities. Also includes re-measurement gains or loss on defined benefit plans.

Cash flow hedge reserve
Cumulative changes in the fair value of financlal i designated as effective hedge are recognised in this reserve through OCI (net of taxes). Amounts recognised in the hedging
treserve ave reclassified to the statement of profit and loss when the undedying transaction occuts.

Securities premium
Securitles premium comptises of the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the specific provision of the Companies Act, 2013,
Equity p of pound f fal Inatrument

The Company has accounted equity component basis on difference between fair value of the instrument as a whole and fait value of the Liability component as per Ind AS 32. This equity is
the residuary interest in assets after deducting lisbilities and initial carrying amount of compound instrument. No gain or loss recognised on initial tecognition of the component.

(This spocs buas beew intentionally iet blank)




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

16. Borrowings Asat
(At amortised cost) 31 March 2025
Rs. million
Unaecured
Unsecured loans from related parties (refer note 33) * 46.12
46.12

~ The Company had availed an ECB facility of SGD 14,13,000 from EMF International Pte. Ltd, at a zero-interest rate. The amount of loan has been discounted using Company's
incremental borrowing rate, During the financial year 202324, the Company made a repayment of SGD 4,20,700. Accordingly, the outstanding ECB balance as at 31 March 2025 is SGD

9,92,300.

Repayment schedule fot the ECB loan is given as under:

As at
31 March 2024
Re, million

41.00
41.00

Date Amount in SGD
9 March 2029 3,79,300
26 July 2029 6,13,000
Total 9,92,300
Effectlve rate of
Amount outstanding Repayment period from origination Instalmente outstanding interest per annum
Geee )
Asat As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2025 31 March 2025
Res. million No.
46,12 8 2 Nil

Disclosure under Para 44A a8 set out in IND AS on cash flow statements under Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2017 (as amended) is given below:

Changes in liabilitics arising from financing activities:

Re. million
Outstanding balance as| Net proceeds/ i
Particulars on (repayment) of Non-cash changes ?::::a;; M":hal;:;:
1 April 2024 borrowing
Long term borxowing (including current maturities of long
[N W—— 41.00 - 512 46.12
Rs. million
Outstanding balance as| Net proceeds/ "
Particulare on (repayment) of Non-cash changes ?::::;; Mu:hﬂ;:;
1 April 2023 horrowing
Long term borrowing (including curtent maturities of long
termiborrowing) 58.53 (26.13) 8.60 41.00
17, Other liabilities
Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Non current:
Others* (refer note 37) 0.02 -
0.02 -
Current:
Revenue received in advance 36.72 39.71
Statutory dues 1.88 0.62
Other payable 0.27 0.52
38.87 40.85

*Gratuity (net of gratuity asset)




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

18. Trade paysbles
(At amortised cost) As at As at
__31March 2028 1 March 2024 _
Re. million Rs. million
- Total outstanding dues of ticro enterprises and small enterprises 17.47 10.88
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro entetprises 50.30 29.24
and small enterprises
61.T7 40.12
Trade payables ageing scliedule gs on 31 Mar 2025 is as under: Rs. million
O ding for following periods from due date of payment
Bacticulars Unbilled dues Not due Less than 1year 1-2 years 2-3 yeats Mote than 3 yeats Total
(1) Micro enterprises and sonll - 16.80 - - 16.80
‘enterpfikes
(i) Disputed dues ~ Micro - - 0.64 0,03 - - 0.67
enterprises and small entarprises
(iif) Others 5 50,30 - : 50.30
(iv)Disputed  dues - Others - - - - - - =
- 67.10 0.64 0.03 - - 67,77
Trade Paysbles agring schedule s on 31 March 2024 is as under: Rs. million
O ling for following periods from due date of payment
Fa— Ui s SCSHEE Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 yeats Total
® Micro enterprises and small - 10M 0.17 - - - 10.88
cnlerprses
(8) Disprated dues — Micro -
enterprises and srnall enterprises
i) Others - 29.24 - 29.24
(W)Disputed  dues - Others - - - = - - -
- 39,95 0.17 - - - 40.12
Trade payable includes Rs. 312 million (previous year: nil ) due to related parties (eefer note 33)
19. Other financial liabilities (Non-current)
(At amortised cost) Apat Asat
31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Re. million
Employee related payable 0.40 2.27
0.40 2.27
20, Other financial Habilitics (Current)
(At amortised cost) As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Re. million Re. million
Cugrent:
Capital creditors * 35.58 527
Employee related payable 6.77 5.60
Derivatives instruments (tefet note 41) 0.49 0.55
42.84 11.42

* Capital creditors includes Rs. 2.79 million (previous year: Rs. 1.14 million) due to related patties (refer note 33)




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

21. Revenue from operations

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs, Million Rs. Million
Sale of products
-Dotmestic sales 201.89 126.64
Other operating revenues
- sale of scrap 1.27 2,02
- others 1.04 0.21
204.20 128.87
Timing of revenue :ecognil:‘ion. . 204.20 128.87
- Goods transferred at a point in time
Contract balances Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Res. million
Revenue received in advance (refer note 17) 36.72 39.71
Contract liabilities - Revenue received in advance
Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Res. million Rs. million
Opening balance of contract liabilities 3971 48.98
Less: Amount of revenue recognised against opening contract labilities (39.71) (48.98)
Add: Addition in balance of contract liabilities for current yeat (net of refunds) 36.72 39.11
Closing balance of contract liabilitics 36.72 3.1
22, Other income
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Re. miltion Re. million
Interest income
- Bank deposits* 20.21 11.16
Other non-operating income
-Net gain on sale/ fair valuation of current investments ~ 11.40 241
-Miscellaneous income 1.75 0.13
33.36 13.70
* undetlying assets on which income is recognised are carried at amortised cost
* underlying asscts on which income is recognised at fair value through profit and loss
23, Cost of material consumed
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Cost of raw material and components consumed 178.11 130.07
Cost of packing material consumed 214 0.63
180.25 130.70
24, (Increase) / decrense in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs, million
Inventories at the end of the year
Wortk-in-progress 1.45 10.45
Finished goods 26.11 12.07
27.56 2252
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress 10.45
Finished goods 12,07

T 22.52
(Increase) / decrease in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progreas , N bs 3 O,} ] (5.04)




SPR EMF Innovations Ptivate Limited

(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

25. Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages

Contdbution to provident and other funds

Staff welfare expenses

26. Finance costs

Intetest expense on borrowings
Interest expense on lease liablilities

Other botrowing costs

27. Depreciation and amortisation expense

- Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (tefer note 3)
- Depreciation on fight of use assets (refer note 6)

- Amottisation of intangible asscts (refer note 5)

28. Other expenses

Freight outward

Power and fuel

Professional fees

Auditots' rtemunetation (refer note 29)
Repairs to buildings

Repairs to machinery

Selling and distribution expenses

Bad debts written off

Provision fot doubtful debts
Provision fot doubtful advances
Management cross charges (tefct note 33)
Business promotion

Directors sitting fees

Miscellaneous expenses

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
26.90 30.01
298 345
2.40 312
32.28 36.58
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Ra. million Ra. million
378 8.87
2.52 264
1,75 0.37
8.08 11.89
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
12.32 10.14
313 314
10.81 845
26.26 2.7
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
0.78 1.08
1.59 1.37
1.16 240
0.71 0.68
0.34 0.2t
0.31 0.26
0.08 0.10
- 212
1.04 0.76
0.29 0.36
20.16 -
0.03 0.29
0.55 0.15
5.70 512
32.74 14.90

%

Wy e
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SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

29, Auditors' remuneration
(excluding goods and service tax, as applicable)

As auditor:
- Audit fee
- Limited review
- Reimbursement of expenses

30, Earnings per share (EPS)

Profit attributable to equity shareholders (Rs million)
Weighted average number of equity shares (million)
Eamings per share

-Basic (Rs)

-Diluted (Rs)

31. Capital and other commitments

Particulars

1) Estimated amount of contracts to be executed on capital account (net of

adwvances) and not provided for

1i) Contingent liabilities

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
0.35 0.35
0.30 0.30
0.06 0.03
0.71 0.68
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(36.98) (67.37)
17.52 12.47
(2.11) (4.60)
(2.11) (4.60)
Yecar ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
43,55 253.72

iil) Total outstanding export obligation of Rs. 5.22 million to be fulfilled under the Export Promotion Capital Goods scheme against
import of some machines/ capital equipments. Average export obligation of Rs. 0.87 million every year (previous yeat - Rs. 0.87 million).

32. The Company has other commitments, for purchase/ sales orders which are issued after considering requirement as per operating
cydle for purchase/ sale of goods, employee benefits in normal cource of business. The Company does not have any other long term
commitments or matetial non-cancellable contractual commitments, which may have a matesial impact on the financial statements.




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formetly EMF Innovations Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

33. Related Party Diaclosure

As pet Indian Accounting Standard ~ 24 the Company’s related parties and transactions with them are disclosed below :

A List of related parties
Ultimate Holding Company
Holding Company
Fellow subsidiary company

Key management personel (KMP)

Close members of the family of key management personnel
Mt. Krishna M

Entity over which, key management personnel
and their close members of the family has
significant influence or control

Shriram Pistons & Rings Limited

SPR Engenious Limited

SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited (Formetly Takahata Precision
India Prvate Limited)

SPR TGPEL Precision Engineeting Limited (Formetly TGPEL Precision
Engineering Limited)

Mrt. Krishnakumar Stinivasan, Chairman

M. Hang Xue Yi, Directot

Mr. Arun Kumar Shukla, Ditectot (upto 31 Januaty 2024), Whole Time
Ditector (w.e.f. 1 February 2024 upto 2 February 2025), Non-executive
Ditector (w.e.f. 3 February 2025)

Mer. Sudip Nandy, Ditector (w.c.f. 6 November 2023)

Mt. Alok Ranjan, Director (w.e.f. 6 November 2023)

Mts. Ferida Chopra, Ditector (w.c.f. 6 November 2023)

M. Krishna M, Ditector (upto 2 February 2025), Managing Director (w.c.f. 3
February 2025)

Mts. Nangala BK.

EMFI Intetnational Pte Ltd

AR4 Tech Private Limited

Sodion Enetgy Private Limited

Radax Motots Prvate Limited

Haitbitat Hair Treatment Private Limited




(i) Related party tranvections

SPR EMF Innovations Private Lirofoed
(fotmedy EMF lnnovations Privalz Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

s, million
Particulars Ultimate Holdimg Holding Compueny Fellow subsidi Key Entity over which, lay Close member of dee Totat
Company eompeny personel (RMF) management personnel | family of koy management
and their close members peraonnal
of the fumily ha
algnificant influence or
control
31 March 31 Masch M March 31 Musch 31 March 31 March 31 Maech 31 March 31 Macch 31 binech 31 Murch 3] Merch 31 March 31 March
2028 20U 2028 2024 2024 2024 2025 204 2028 2034 2028 2024 006 204
Purchasn

« BPR Takahata Peecision India Private Limited = | - 033 - - - - - 053 .

- Sheiren Fistons & Rmgs Limited 010 - - - - - - B . - [T)
Purchass of

« 5P, Tkl Precision lodis Prvate Limiisd - - - . 1M - - - - - - 13 .

« Shriesm Pistuns & Rings Limited 5 .05 - P . - = a - u = 005
Payment towurds Resotirce & Fasilivies Ehuring® 742 1.0 12180 . . - - - i 1o |
Loan taken (refer nate - if) - 00 - - - - - = = * 250 |
Laan id {refer note - ii] i - - . - - - - - = 0,00
Emtzrent on foan taken 010 . - s - - . - . - [T
Halen/enrvices

< Altd Tech Private Limised - B - - - - . ETNE] - - 2017
Estarnal gammurvial i ECH) - ang

- EMFI Intemational Pie Limited - = - - - . - 2013 . - 2612
Exuity infusion (allotment of shares)

- SPR Engraious Limited - - B T, 0 = = = - = 0
Helmbunement m" [%7] ik - = = [0 -
Reenvery towanis expanses imbumemant

- SPH Engeniosis Limited - - - (X1 - - = . - 0
- Shairsm Platoon de Nings Limiied nal o - . . - . . - [} s




(i) Balance due from/ (to) related parties

SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formedy BMF Inpovstiona Private Limited)
Notes to tho financlal statements for the yvar ended 31 Marsh 2028

Particulars Ultimate bolding Holding company Rallow eubsidiary Koy mansgement Entity over which, iny Claee members af the Tesnd
compaty company personel (RMP) mansgement permonnel | family of key mussgesment
and their close members personnel
of the family hae
significant influence or
coutro]
3 Masrch | 31 March | 31 March 3 March 3 March 31 March 31 Muroh 31 Murah 31 March 31 Marck 31 March 3] March 3l hinsal i March
2028 2% 2028 4 2028 20M 202 % 2028 04 2028 20 s 04
Shiriram Piatons de Mings Limited | - - - - - (1 .
SPR Engennas Linvided - Nﬂ (L) - - - . - o il
AR Tech Private Limafoed - . - : 028 [T - - [¥°]) [ET]
Sodnam Enengy Private Linsijed . - . 016 016 - 16 | [
EXIFT Infermatisnal Pis Lindted - - il (Al x [ 15{ AL
SPH Takahuts Precision India Pavite Limbted (34mn] - a[ E!.t - (147 .
N

)  No guarantees have been given or received in respect of relsted parties,

i)  The purpose of this loan from Ultimate Holding Company is W meet the fiding requirements for fuhure business opportunities in the aress relsted to the sutomotive segment.
i) 'The transsctions with related pastiea are made in the ordinary cousse of business md oo terns equivalent to those that prevail in azm's length trxnsactions.
¥ Out of Ra 1289 millions paid to Holding Compsay, the Company has capitalived Ry, 0,35 milion (previous yoarmil) towmeds intellectusd propesty.

(T spos bt boow inteslowally I8 Weork)
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SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formesly EMF Innovations Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

34, Leases

The changes in the caseying value of right of use nssets for the year ended 31 March 2025 ace as follows:

Rs. million
Particulars Right of usa asset
Land Buildings
Balance as of 01 April 2023 290 .77
Addition - -
Amottisation of right of use asset (0.78)
Balance as of 31 March 2024 2,12 254
Balance as of 1 April 2024 212 25.41
Additions - -
Amortisation of tight of use asset 077 (236
Balance as of 31 March 2028 138 23.05
The break-up of current and non-current lease lisbilities as of 31 March 2025 is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Re. miltion Ra. milllon
Current 1.87 1.50
Non-current 25.30 2717
Total 2717 28,67
The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2025 is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. miflion
Balance at the beginning 28.67 29.88
Additions - -
Finance cost accrued dusing the period 252 264
Payment of lease liabilities (4.02) (3.85)
Balance at the end 2117 28.67
The detuails of c | ities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Re. million Re, million
Less thun one year 4.24 4.02
One to five years 19.79 15.84
More than five years 17.58 25.74
Total 41,58 45.60
The following are the gnised in § of Profit or Lose:
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2028 31 March 2024
Re, million Ra. miltion
Depreciation expense of right of use assets 313 314
Interest expenses on lease liabilities 252 264
Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit or Loas 5.65 5.78

The Company has elected not to recognise a lease liability for current leases (leases with an expected tesm of 12 months or less). Payments made undee such
leases ate expensed on a straight-line basis, The Company does not have any liability to make vadable lease pagments for the right-to-use the underlying aaset
tecognised i the financials.

The table below desceibes the nature of the Company’s leasing activities by type of tight-of-use asset recagnised on balance sheet:

No. of right Range of Average remaining

of aagets remaining term lease term
leased (in years) (in years)

Buildings
- 31 Masch 2025 1 9.75 9.75
- 31 Masch 2024 | 10.75 10.75
Land
- 31 March 2025 1 1.75 1.75
- 31 Mascch 2024 1 278 275

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease labilities to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formesly EMF I ions Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

35. Segment reporting

The Company i engaged m a single segment ie. the bust of “automotive compuineats" from where it it carning ity revenue and incurring expense. The
opesating results are segulasly seviewed and performance is assedsed by its Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). All the company's tesources are dedicated
o this smgle sup and all the di finnacial infl inn is available for this

Geographical information in respect of sale of products from customers is given below

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Domestic sale 201.89 126.64
201.89 12664

Note:

i) There are no matertal non current asset domiciled outise India.

if) Revenue from one customer amounting to Rs, 141,91 million (previous year Rs. 69.35 million from four customers) represents 10% or more of the
Companys' revenue from opertions.

36. Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act

The status of vendors under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 is based on certificate submitted by vendors about their
coverage under the provisions of MSMED Act, 2006.

Year ended Year caded
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs, million Rs. milliom
A ining unpaid to suppliers under MSMED as at the end
of year
- Principal amount 17.46 1087
- Interest due theteon 0.01 0.01
Amount of paymenta made to suppliers beyond the appointed day
during the year
- Principal amount 6.09 1248
- Interest actually paid under section 16 of MSMED - =
Armount of interest due and payable for delay in payment (which has been 0.04 ao7
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding
interest under MSMED
I d and ining unpaid at the end of the year
- Interest accrued during the year 0.05 0a7
- Tnterest cemaining unpaid as at the end of the year 0.01 0.01
Interest remaining disallowable 25 deductible expenditure under the Income 0.05 0.07
tax Act, 1961
(This space bas beew intentionally left blank)
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SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
Employee benefits
The Company has classified the various employee benefits as under -

Defined ihui 1
The Company has recognised the following amount in the statement of profit and loss:-
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Re. million Rs. million
Employers' contribution to provident fund 1.87 207
Employers' contribution to state insurance fund 0.29 0.38
2,16 245
Defined benefit plans - gratuity.
In accordance with Ind AS 19, actuarial valuation of defined benefit plans was done for gratuity and details of the same are given below :
; Year ended Year ended
Particulare 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million

Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss

Current setvice cost 0.84 0.94
Past service cost - -
Net Interest cost on defined benefit/ liability - -
Total expense recognieed in the Statement of Profit and Loss 0.84 0.94

Actual contribution and benefit payments for the year

Actual benefit payments - -

Actual contributions 0,55 1.69
0.55 1.69

Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet

Present value of defined benefit obligation 283 1.90

Fair value of plan assets 281 211

Funded status [Surplus / (Deficit)] (0.02) 0.21

Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet (0.02) 0.21

Change in defined benefit obligadons (DBO) during the year

Present value of defined benefit obligations at beginning of the year 1.90 1.22
Current setvice cost 0.84 0.94
Interest cost 0.14 0.09
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (Actuarial (gains)/losses)

- Changes in Demographic assumptions 0.20) 0.06
~ Changes in Financial assumptions 0.44 (0.15)
- Experience Vadance 0.28) 0.26)
Benefits paid - -
Present value of DBO at the end of the year 2.84 1.90

Change in fair value of plan assets during the year

Plan assets at beginning of the year 211 0.41
Investment income 0.15 0.03
Employet's contributions 0.55 1.69
Return on Plan assets excluding amount recognised in net interest expenses - (0.02)
Benefits paid - -
Plan assets at the end of the yeac 2,81 21

Expected return on plan assets n =

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gains)/ losses

- Changes in demographic assumptions (0.20) 0.06
- Changes in financial assumptions 044 0.15)
- Experience variance (0.28) (0.26)
(Return)/loss on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in net interest expense - 0.02

©33)




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formetly EMF Innovations Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Maech 2025

Year ended Yesar ended
A ial ptions for G 31 March 2025 3 March 2024
Discount rate 6.60% 7.15%
Expected retuen on plan assets 0.00% 0.00%
Salary escalation 10.00% 9.00%
Attrition 12,00% 10%, pa
Mortality table used 100% of IALM  100% of TALM
2012-14 2012-14
Sensitivity Analyeis for significant actuarial assumptions Year ended 31 March 2025 Year ended 31 March 2024
Impact on Linbil.lly Impact on Lisbility
Particulare Increase I D
Re, milion Rs. mllion Ra, milion Rs. mifion

Discount Rate +100 basis points - 313 - 212

-100 basip points 259 - 1.72 -
Salary growth rate +100 basis points 312 - 211 -

-100 basis points - 260 - 172
Attrition Rate +100 basis points E 243 - 228

-100 basis points 362 - 1.65
Mortality Rate +100 basia points - 284 - 1.90

-100 basis points 284 - 1.90

The sensitivity analygis has been determined based on possihle changes of the assumptions occucring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis
present above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions
may be co-telated,

Risk factors in actuarfal assumptions

Interest sate rlak: The plan exposes the company to the zisk of fall in interest rates, A fall in interest rates will result in an increase In the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus resulr in
an inceease in the value of the liability.

Liquidity rlak: This is the risk that the Company is nat able to meet the short term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non availability of enough cash/ cash equivalent to meet the liabilities ar holding
of illquid assets not being sold in titme.

Salary escalation rluk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in futuce. Deviation i the rate of increase of salary in funure
for plan participants fronm the eate of increase in salary use to determine the peesent value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

Demographic risk: The Company has used certain mottality and attrition assumption in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be wome
compared to the assumption,

Asset liability mlsmatching or market rsk: The duration of the liability is longer compared to duration of assets, exposing the Company to market risk for volatilities/ fall in interest rate.
I risk: The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected retum on any particular investment.
The following pay are expected future cash flows to the deflued benefit plan (undiscounted in future years):

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 Masch 2024

Rs. milllon Rs, million
Year 1 0.13 0.05
Year 2 - 5 years 107 0.62
Year 6 - 10 years 131 095
More than 10 yeaes 3.65 329
Regulatory fi i/ G / benefits under the plan:

The gratuity benefit is a post employment benefit. It is calculated at the teominal salary (Basic+VDA) at the time of reticemnent/ cesignation of the employee according to the provisions of Payment of
Graruity Act, 1972. However, there is no restriction on the maximum amount of gratuity payable. The plan assets are managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Under this policy, the eligible employees are entitled to receive gratuity pay upon theic resignation or death in Jumg after deduction of taxes. The fund managers do not disclose the
composition of their portfolic inveatment, accordingly beeak-down of plan assets by investment type has not been disclosed.

Asyet lability matching atrategies

The Company has purchased insurance policy, which is a cash accumulation plan, Interest on the fund balances durting the year is accumulated at the intecest rate declared by i « y at the end
of the financial year, Gratuity claims ace settled by the insurance company out of the fund, thus mitigating any liquidity nisk. However, being a cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets in shortes
cormpared to the ducation of the liabilitics. Thus, the Company is exposed to movement in inteeest cate.

Effect of plan on entity's future cash flows
The Company has purchased Insurance policies to provide for payment of gratuity to the employees. The contribution to the funds are made based on estimated shortfall in plan assets from liabilitics.

Expected contribution during the next annual reporting perod is Rs. 0.70 million (previous year - Re.1.69 million). Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation based on weighted average duratian is 10
Years.
The plan assets are managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). Under this policy, thc cllgble cmpluyces are cnnd:d to receive gratuity p upon their cesignation or death in lumpsum after
deduction of necessary taxes, Estirmate of the future salary increase is based on factors such as infl Y, P ons, d d and supply in employ market.
Year ended Year ended
SSEEERCEE 31 March 2028 31 March 2024
Rs. milion Ra. milion
Pregent value of DBO 2.83 1.90
Employer's contributions 281 211
Net Asset/ (liability) 0.02) 0.21
Defined contribution plan
The Company malkes ibutions for qualifying employees to Provid

million) towards defined contribution plans,




38. Fair value measurement

SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 20258

1) The carrying value and fair value of financial insttuments by categories as of 31 Macch 2025 are as under:

Rs. million
Financial assets/
Particulars (financial libilities) at fair| Total carrying value Total fair value
value
Fi 1l assets/ (fi ial liabilitles)
Investment in mutual fund 110.89 110.89 110.89
Derivatives instruments*
- Forward contracts (0.49) (0.49) (0.49)
Total 110.40 110.40 110.40
‘The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of 31 March 2024 are as under:
R, mallion
Financial aesets/
Particulars (financial liabilities) at fair] Total carrying value Total fair value
value
Fi ial anscta/ (fi ial liabilities)
Investment in mutual fund 31623 316.23 316.23
Detivatives instruments™
- Forward contracts (0.55) (0.55) (0.55)
Total 315.68 315.68 315.68

*Change in fair value is tecognised in other comprehenyive income,

il) Falr value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and/or disclosing the fait value of financial instruments by valuation techniques:
The following is the basis of categorising the financial instruments measuted at fair value into Level 1 to Level 3.

Level 1 - This level includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 = This level includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
linbility, eithet directly (i.e. as prices) ot indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3 - This level includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are
determined in whole or in patt, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are heither supported by prices from obsetvable current market transactions in the
same instrument nor ate they based on available market data.

Fair value hierarchy of assets and labilities measured at fait value on a tecurring basis as of 31 March 2025:

Rs. million
Fair value measurement at end of the reporting period /year using
Particulars As at 31 March 20258
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets/(liabilitics)
[nvestment in mutual fund * 110.89 110.89
Derivatives instruments **
- Fotward contracts (0.49) - (0.49)
Total 110.40 - 110.40 -
There 1s no transfer between the fair value hierarchy gst level 1, level 2 and level 3 during the yeat.
Rs. million
Falr value measurement at end of the reporting period/year using
Particulars As at 31 March 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial asseta/ (liabilities)
Investment in mutual fund * 316.23 316.23
Derivatives instrutnents **
- Forwatd conitracts (0.55) (0.55)
Total 315.68 - 313,68 -

There 15 no teansfer between the fair value measurement hierarchy amongst level 1,

* The fait values are based on net asset value

** The fair values are based on exchange rates as at the reporting date.

evel 2 and level 3 during the year.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

iii) Financial assets and financial liabilitics that are measured at amortised cost are :

Rs. million
s Carrying amount
PAIIIHTS Asat 31 March 2025 | As at 31 March 2024

Financial assets
Security deposits 343 1.56
Interest accrued on bank deposit 0.21 0.75
Ttrade receivables 97.99 19.86
Cash and cash equivalents 2.68 17.35
Other bank balances 54,48 404.32
Financial liabilitiea
Borrowings 46.12 41.00
Lease linbilities 2717 28,67
Capital creditors 35.58 5.27
Trade payables 67.77 40.12
Bamployee related payable 717 7.87
The carrying value of above financial assets and financinl liabilities approximate its fuir value,

39, Cupital management

The Company’s objective for managing capital is to ensure as under:

i) Ensure the Compuny’s ubility 1o continue as a going concem

i) Maintain a strong credit rating and debt equity and capital geating ratio in order to support business and maximize the shareholders’ value.
if) Maintain an optimal capital structure.

iv) Compliance of financial covenants under the botrowing facilitics.

The Company manages its capital structuse keeping inview of;
i) Compliance of financial covenants under the borrowing fucilities
i) Changes in ¢conomic conditions

T ocder to achicve this ovenall objective of capital management, amongst other things, the Company aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the
b ings facilities defining capital structure requitements, where breach in mecting the financial covenants may permit the lender to call the barmowings.
There have been no breach in the financial covenants of any borrowing facility in the current period. There is no change in the objectives, policies o processes for

managing capital over previous year.

For the purpose of capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company and nct debt
indudes total liabilities, comprising interest beating loans and borrowings.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as intetest-bearing debts adjusted with available cash and bank balances
divided by total capital (equity attributable to vwoets of the Company).

The funding req of the company is f ily met theough internal accruals, leading to a negative net debt position as under
As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Bommngs (refer mote 16) (ncluding current 4612 4100
matunties
Less: cash and bank balances (refer note 13) 57.16 421.67

Net debt (A) Ni Nil
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Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2028

40, Financial risk g t

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other thaa dmvmves. compme of loans and borrowings, tmade and other payables. The ﬂmn puspose of these financial liabilitics is
to finance the Compmy's operations. The Company’s principal fi I nssets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that it derives direcdly from its
openations. The Company also holds FVTPL current inveatments and enters into derivative transactions.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk, price risk and liquidity sisk. The Company’s senior management ovetsees the nanagement of these risks under appropriate

policies and procedures.

i) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will i b of changes in market prices. Matket risk comprises three types of risk
interest tate risk, cursency cisk and other price tisk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by matket risk include borrowings, deposits,
FVTPL current investments and derivative financial instruments.

a) Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk !hmugh its ules and purchases from overseas in fom.gn currencies mainly in USD, CNY and SGD. The Company halds
derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchang; [ to mitigate the risk of changes in exchmgc mites on foreign currency exposures, The exchange mte
between the rupee and foreign ies has cl d substantially in recent years and may fuctuate substantially in the future, Consequently, the results of the Company’s

oporttions may be adversely affected as the rupee npprecmes/ depreciates against these currencies.
Sensitlvity
Bach percentage point change in the foreign exchange mtes has an impact on profit before intetcat and tax as follows:

Increase / (decrease)

As at 3t March As at 31 March
2028 2024
Re. million Res. million
Exchange mte - inctease i by 1% (0.25) (0.03)
Exchange tate - decrease by 1% 0.25 0.03
The Company’s foreign y cisk from financial instruments ace a5 undec:
(Forelgn currency million)
. As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Partculars C y
Total Hedged Net Total Hedged Net

Borrowings SGD 0.99 0.99 - 0.99 0.99 =
Trade payables USD 0,05 - 0.03 0.03 = 0.03
Capital ceeditor USD 0.03 - 0.03 . - -

CNY 1.62 - 1.62
b) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the cisk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial i will f because of changes in macket interest tes. The Company has not any
exposuce towards long term debts bearing interest and hence, the Company is not exposed to any interest sate cisk.
il) Credit rivk
Credit risk is the risk that countetpatty wdl not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to & financial loss. The Company is exposed to
credit mk from its ¢ ing @ ily trade receivables) and from its financing , including deposits with banks and financial inetitutions, foteign exchange

ions and othc( ial i Credit risk is tmanaged by Company’s established policy, procedutes and control relating to customer credit risk management.

Credit tisk has always been managed by the Company through ceedit approvals, establishing ceedit Limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which
the Company geants credit terms in the normal course of busi The Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss and makes an allowance for
doubtful debts using expected credit loss model on case to case basis,

M t in the expected credit loss allowance of financial assets
(Rs. million)
Year ended Year ended
Estculen 3 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Bal at beginning of the year 0,90 0.14
Add: Provided during the vear 0.92 0.76
Balance at the end of the year 1,82 0.90




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
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Notea to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net) before adjustment of expected credit loss provision of Rs. 1,82 million (31 March 2024: Rs. 0,90 million) as of the reporting date is as

follows: Rs. million

Age bracket 0-180 days 180-365 days More than 365 Total

days

As at 31 March 2028
Trade teceivable (gross) 97.14 0.83 1.84 99.81
Less: Allowance for expected loss . (0.28) (1.54) (1.82
Trade receivable (net) 97.14 0.55 0.30 97.99
Expected credit loss % 0.00% (33.73%) (83.70%) (1.82%)
As at 31 March 2024
Trade seceivable (gross) 18.55 0.12 2.09 2076
Less: Allowance for expected loss 0.02 (0.01) (0.87) (0.90)
Trade recelvable (net) 18.53) 0.1 122 19.86
Expected credit loss % (0.11%) (8.33%) (41.63%) (4.34%)

iif) Liquidity risk

The Company’s objective is to tnaintain 4 balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans. Liquidity risk is managed by
Company’s established policy and procedures made under liquidity risk management framework. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities, and resecve borrowing facilites,by continuously forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities.

The financial assets and libilities have been appropriately disclosed in financial statements as current and non current portion, The maturity period of non current financial assets

and financial liabilities ranges between 1 to 6 years except lease liabilities where period may vary as per respective lease agr

As at 31 March As at 31 March

2028 2024
Rs. million Ra, million

On demand
- Borrowings
Less than 1 year
- Borrowings . -
-Trade payables 67.77 40.12
-Lease liabilities 1.87 1.50
-Other financial liabilities 42,84 11.42
More than 1 year
- Borrowings 46.12 41.00
-Lease liabilities 25.30 2717
-Other financial liabilides 0.40 2.27

Details of undrawn facilities of the Company from banks and financial institutions (fund based as well as non fund based):

Total Committed working capital limits from Banks 149.50

Utilized working capital limit -

Unutilized wotking capital limit 149.50

iv) Commodity risk

Commodity price nisk is the financial risk on the Company's profitability upon fl ions in the prices of commodities since they are primarily driven by external matket forces.

Sharp fluctuations in commodity prices can affect production costs, product pm:mg and earnings. This price volatility makes it imperative for an entity to manage the impact of
commaodity price fluctuations across its value chain to effectively ge its fi ] pecfoemance and profitability. To mmgate these risks, the coinpany employs multiple levers,
each chosen based on a cost benefit analysis and the extent of exposuze to commodtty pnce fuctuations. These include sssessmg the feasibility of passing any adverse fluctuations
onto customers through price increases, conunuo\uly gaging in cost optimisation ives and process improvement excreises, The Company also explores options such as
localiving imports/ implementing global soutcing atrategies to ensure most cost effective sourcing, Based on the by the Cc y and after factoring the ability o
optimise costs and pass on prices to customen, no individual commodity is expected to have a significant adverse impact on the financial petformance/profitability beyond its

materiality threshold approved by the Board,

v) Odher price risk

The Company has deployed its surplus funds into various fi inst including units of mutual funds. The Company is exposed to NAV (net asset value) price sisks
arising from investments in these funds. The value of these investments is impacted by movements in interest rates, liquidity and credit quality of underlying securitics,
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41. Hedge accounting

Forwards contracts

The Company holds detivative financial i msr.mments such a8 fotﬂgﬂ cxchmge forward contracts to mitigate the nsk of changes in exchange rates on forclg) currency exposures.
The counter pasty for these conteacts is gy 2 bank or a financial institution. These detivative financial instruments ase valued based on quoted prices for similar assets and
tiabilities in active markets or inputs that are dnrecr.ly or indirectly observable in the market place.

Details of forward foreign cuecency contracts outstanding at the end of ceporting period are as under:

(Forelgn currency million)
As at 31 March | As at 31 March
Outstanding contracts Currency 2026 2024
Maturing Jater than three month and not later than
e year SGD/INR 0.99 1.00
The Company has designated foreign exchange forward contracts as cash flow hedges to mitigate the risk of foreign exchange exposute on highly probable forecast cash
transactions. The related hedge transactions for balance lying in cash flow hedging reserve ase expected to occur and reclassified in the of profit or loss within 6 moaths.

Hedge offectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship. To ensure that an economic telationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrument, the
Company matches the critical terms of the hedged items and hedging instruments,

Reconciliation of cash flow hedge reserve are as unden:

Ra million

Particulars As at 31 March | As at 31 March
2025 2024

|Assets / (llability)
Bal at the beginning of the year (0.55)
;S:rn / (loss) recognised in other comprehensive income during the 0.06 ©55
Tax impact on above - -
Balance at the end of the year 0.49) (0.55)

42, The Company does not have any long term contracts including dersivative contracts for which thete are any material foreseeable losses.

(This space bas been intentionally lf? blank)
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43, Additional regulatory information

. Year ended Year ended Variance
Particulars Unit Numerator Denominator 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 %
Cutrent ratio* Times |Total current assets Total current liabilities 3.04 9.92 (69-36%9)
Debt-Equity ratio*™* Times |Debt consist of borrowings |Total Equity 0.05 0.04 25.12%
Eamings for Debt service= |Debt service = Interest and
Debt service coverage ratio *** Times [Net proft after tax + lease payments+ Principal (6.94) (1.14) 509.16%
depreciation + interest tepayments
Return on equity ratio** %  |Profit for the year Average total equity 0.04) (9.01) (99.56%)
Inventory turnover ratio Times |Cost of Goods sold Average inventory 1.66 1.50 10.46%
Trade receivables turnover ratio” Times |Sales of products Average trade receivables kX 7.95 (56.68%)
Cost of material + employee
Trade payables turnover ratio” Times |bencfit cxpense+ other Average trade payable 4.16 6.41 (35.06%)
expenses
Average working capital (i.e
Net capital tumover ratio# Times |Sales of products Total current assets less Total 037 0.24 54.24%
current liabilitics)
Net profit ratio@ %  |Profit for the year Sales of products 0.18) (45.23) (99.60%)
. Profit before tax and finance | Capital employed = Net ;
Return on capital employed@ % L ost h+Debt (0.03) (4.91) (99.39%)
P Income geaerated from Average invested funds in y
9 s
Return on investment$ % lnvested fiand 7 by e 0.07 3.76 (98.10%)

* The vadation is due to decrease in financial assets and increase in financial liabilities in the current year,
** The variation is on account of decrease in other equity and net losa.

*#33 The variation is on account of no tepayment of borrowing during the current year.

~ The vadiation is on account of increase in revenue/ cost of goods consumed in the current year.

# The vatiation is on account of increase of working capital during the current year.

@ The variation is on account decrease in net loss during the current year.

$ The variation is on account of decrease in invested fund dusing the current year.

44. The Company has no transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

45. No proceedings have been initiated ot are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder,

46. There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with registrar of companies (ROC) beyond the statutory pedod.

47. The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

48, The Company does not any such trangaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
yeat in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

49, Figures of previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified, wherever necessary, to correspond with the figures of the current period. The impact of such
regrouping/ reclassification is not material to these financial statements.
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50. T"he Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person or entity, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with
the understanding that the Intermediacy shall:

a) directly or indircctly lend or invest in other persons or entities identificd in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantce, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

51, The Company has not received any funds from any person or entity, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Bencficiaries) or

b) provide any guatantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Bencficiaries.
52. The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any govemnment authority.

53. The Compaay has complied with the number of layers as prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies
(Restriction on number of Laycrs) Rules, 2017.

54. The Compaay has been sanctioned a working capital limit in excess of Rs. 50.00 million by ICICI Bank Limited, based on the security of
current assets. The quacterly ceturns/statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company with the bank and
such retums/statements are in agreement with the books of account of the Company for the respective periods which were subject to
audit/review. Further, the Company is yet to file quarterly returns/statements for the quarter ended 31 March 2025.

55. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the
Companics (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted by the Companics (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companics, which uses
accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall use only such accounting softwace which has a feature of recording audit teail
of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the hooks of account along with the date when such changes were
made and ensurng that the audit trail cannot be disabled. The new requirement is applicable with effect from the financial year beginning on 1
April 2023,

The Company, in respect of financial year commencing on or after 1 April 2023, has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for
record retention from the date the audit teail was enabled for the accounting software,
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